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Justine Lawrenz Lingatong appeals from the district court’s judgment and

challenges the 60-month sentence imposed following his guilty-plea conviction for
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bank fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1344; and aggravated identity theft, in
violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1028 A. We have jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1291, and
we affirm.

The government contends that this appeal should be dismissed because it is
moot and because it is barred by the appeal waiver set forth in Lingatong’s plea
agreement. Because we cannot ascertain from the record whether any effective
relief can be granted, we deny the government’s request to dismiss the appeal as
moot. See Forest Guardians v. Johanns, 450 F.3d 455, 461 (9th Cir. 2006). We
also decline to dismiss the appeal on the basis of the appeal waiver and instead
affirm on the merits. See United States v. Jacobo Castillo, 496 F.3d 947, 957 (9th
Cir. 2007) (en banc).

Lingatong contends that the district court erred in concluding that 18 U.S.C.
§ 1028 A required that his federal sentence for aggravated identity theft be imposed
consecutively to, rather than concurrently with, his state prison term. We review
issues of statutory interpretation de novo. See United States v. Begay, 622 F.3d
1187, 1193 (9th Cir. 2010). Contrary to Lingatong’s contention, section 1028A
required the court to run his sentence consecutively. See 18 U.S.C. § 1028A;
United States v. Gonzalez, 520 U.S. 1, 5 (1997).

AFFIRMED.
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